
 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
January 30, 2025 

 
Open to the public 

9:00 AM Garfield Township Hall – Upstairs Main Hall 
3848 Veterans Dr, Traverse City, MI 49684 

                                                                                                                                                           
Persons with disabilities which the foregoing opportunities for participation will not address should 
contact Darcey Gratton at (231) 932-3010 or dgratton@gtpavilions.org with questions or concerns.   

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. ROLL CALL  
 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of 
Health and Human Services Board which is required to be open to the public under the provisions 
of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.  (MCLA 15.261, et.seq.)  Public comment shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following Board Rules and Procedures: 

1. Any person wishing to address the Board shall state his or her name and address. 
2. Persons may address the Board on matters which are relevant to Grand Traverse 

Pavilions issues. 
3. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding time 

needed to answer Board Members questions.  The Chairperson shall control the amount 
of time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed three (3) minutes. 

a) Chairperson may, at his or her discretion, extend the amount of time any person is 
allowed to speak. 

b) Whenever a group wishes to address the Board, the Chairperson may require that 
the group designate a spokesperson; the Chairperson shall control the amount of 
time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed fifteen 
(15) minutes. 

 
The Board shall not comment or respond to a person who is addressing the Board.  Silence or 
non-response from the Board should not be interpreted as disinterest or disagreement by the 
Board. 
 
Please be respectful and refrain from personal or political attacks. 
 

4. COUNTY LIAISON REPORT 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with by 

one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board, or staff may ask that any item 

on the consent calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  Such 

requests will be automatically respected. 

 

 



If any item is not removed from the consent calendar, the item on the agenda is approved by a 

single Board action adopting the consent calendar. 

 

A.  Review and File           HANDOUT# 
(1)       Draft Minutes of the 12/20/24 Board Meeting    1 
(2)       Closed Minutes of the 12/20/24 Board Board Meeting   2 
(3)       Draft Minutes of the 12/24/24 Special Board Meeting   Handout 
(4)       December Resident Council Minutes      3 

 
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
8. CHAIRMAN REPORT         Verbal 

 

9. SERVICE EXCELLANCE AWARDS        4 
 

10. GRAND TRAVERSE MEDICAL CARE  
A.  General Information           

(1)    Fourth Quarter Overtime Report      5 
   

B.  Chief Executive Officer Board Report      6 
 

C.  Business 
(1)    Financials         7 

(2)       Organizational Structure       8 

(3)       Fund Developer for GTP         Verbal 

(4)       Resolution 2025 - 1 – Authorized Representative       9 

(5)       Authorized Bank Signers       Verbal 

(6)       Request to Purchase – Ice Maker      10 

           

G.T.P. Announcements   
(1)     Next Board Meeting – February 27, 2025 

      
11. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT 

Refer to Rules under First Public Comment above. 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 



DRAFT  

 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 20, 2024 MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Mary Marois, Carol Crawford, Karen Griggs       Board  
  Lindsey Dood, Darcey Gratton        Staff  
  TJ Andrews                 Commission 
 
ABESENT: Gerard Bodalski          Staff 
 
GUESTS: DeAndre Harris of Warner Norcross & Judd (virtual) 
         
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 9:00am by Board Chair Mary Marois at the Governmental Center.    
 
Marois welcomed Griggs as the newly appointed DHHS Board member by the Grand Traverse 
County Board of Commissioners.   

 
First Public Comment  
Dean Kroupa 
 
County Liaison Report – Andrews shared the County Ad hoc committee for the Pavilions will 
naturally discontinue at the end of each year as well as her term as County Liaison for the 
Pavilions.  Andrews stated, should there be a desire for another ad hoc committee through 
2025, it will be addressed by the County Chair in January along with liaison assignments for 
2025.    
 
Approval of Agenda – Marois shared the need to add Closed Session as #12 to the agenda to 
consider an opinion letter from legal counsel under section 8(h) of the Open Meetings Act to 
consider material exempt from disclosure by section 13(1)(g) of the Michigan Freedom of 
Information Act, which exempts from public disclosure information or records subject to the 
attorney-client privilege.  Motion was made by Crawford to approve the Agenda with additions 
as presented, seconded by Marois and carried unanimously.    
     
The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with 
by one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board or staff may ask that any 
item on the Consent Calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  
Such requests will be automatically respected.  

 
REVIEW AND FILE 
  

(1)       Draft Minutes of the 11/25/24 Board Meeting 
(2)       November Resident Council Minutes 

 
Motion was made by Griggs to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  Motion seconded 
by Crawford and carried unanimously. 
 
Items Removed From Consent Calendar – None 
 

Page 3 of 46

dgratton
Text Box
1



DRAFT  

 

2 
 

Chairman Report – Marois and Crawford gave holiday greetings to staff and shared their 
gratitude for their commitment each day and are proud of the accomplishments made in 2024. 
Marois shared Financial Director, Lindsey Dood is filling in for CEO/Administrator Gerard 
Bodalski.   
 
Service Excellence Awards – Marois reviewed November’s Service Excellence Awards. 
  
Holiday Life Enrichment Update – Dood shared recent holiday events for the residents. 
 
Chief Executive Officer Report – Provided to the Board with no other questions.   The Board 
discussed census and gave Griggs an update on the Cottage Master Plan. 
 
Financial Report – Dood presented the financial operations report for November 2024 and 
answered board members’ questions.  Motion made by Crawford to accept the financial 
operations report as presented.  Motion seconded by Griggs.  Motion carried. Roll Call - Marois 
– yes, Crawford – yes, Griggs – yes. 
 
Election of Officers – Crawford made a motion to nominate Marois as Chair, seconded by 
Griggs and carried unanimously.  Marois made a motion to nominate Crawford as Vice Chair, 
seconded by Griggs and carried unanimously. 
 
Proposed 2025 Calendar – The Board reviewed the proposed meeting dates for 2025.  Motion 
was made by Crawford to approve the Proposed 2025 DHHS Board Schedule as presented.  
Motion seconded by Griggs and carried unanimously. 
 
Resolution 2024-5 Pension Contribution – Dood reviewed the resolution for Grand Traverse 
Pavilions (GTP) to make a voluntary contribution into the GTP defined benefit pension plan in 
the amount of $1,200,000 as presented.  Motion made by Crawford to approve Resolution 
2024-5 Pension Contribution as presented.  Motion seconded by Griggs and carried 
unanimously. Roll Call - Marois – yes, Crawford – yes, Griggs – yes. 
 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next Board Meeting January 30, 2024  
(2) A tour will be arranged for Griggs and new county officials in the new year. 

 
Motion was made by Marois seconded by Crawford to go into Closed Session at 9:53 am for the 
purpose of closed session pursuant to section 8(h) of the Open Meetings Act to consider 
material exempt from disclosure by section 13(1)(g) of the Michigan Freedom of Information Act, 
which exempts from public disclosure information or records subject to the attorney-client 
privilege. 
 
Andrews out 9:57am 
Harris in 10:04am (virtual) 
 
Roll Call - Marois – yes, Crawford – yes, Griggs – yes 
 
Motion was made by Crawford to come out of Closed Session at 11:02 am, seconded by Griggs 
and carried unanimously. 
 

Page 4 of 46



DRAFT  

 

3 
 

Motion was made by Crawford to adopt the recommendations as presented by legal counsel, 
seconded by Griggs and carried unanimously.  Roll Call - Marois – yes, Crawford – yes, Griggs 
– yes 
 
Meeting adjourned at 11:02 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Mary Marois – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 
 

Page 5 of 46



 

1 
 

                                                                                            
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 

 
MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 24, 2024 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
    
PRESENT: Mary Marois, Carol Crawford      Board 
  Lindsey Dood        Staff 
ABSENT: Karen Griggs    
GUESTS:   
     
The special board meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human 
Services Board was called to order at 8:00 am by Board Chair Cecil McNally in the Board room 
at Grand Traverse Pavilions.   
 
First Public Comment - none 
 
Authorization for Interim Administrator/CEO – Motion by Carol Crawford, supported by Mary 
Marois to allow Marois to negotiate with David Hautamaki regarding certain conditions of his 
employment with GTP as Acting Administrator/CEO including start date, compensation and 
benefits until a new permanent Administrator is named and on board.  Furthermore, Marois is 
authorized to sign any document that pertains to permissions granted to Mr. Hautamaki in his 
role as Acting Administrator/CEO.  Motion Carried 
 
Motion by Carol Crawford, supported by Mary Marois to allow Marois to negotiate with our 
Acting CEO, Lindsey Dood, compensation for his additional duties in his role as Acting CEO in 
2023 and 2024/25.  Motion Carried 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:30 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Mary Marois – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
 
Date: January 30, 2024            Approved 
                                         Corrected and Approved 

Page 6 of 46

dgratton
Text Box
2



PAVILIONS RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
December 19, 2024 

 
The December 2024 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was 
called to order at 11:00 am in the Multi-Purpose Room by Susan Eldred. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
Members present were introduced: Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes 
Birch Pavilion: 4 Residents attended. 
Cherry Pavilion: 7 Residents attended. 
Dogwood Pavilion: 2 Residents attended.    
 
Staff members were introduced: 
Susan Eldred, CTRS, Life Enrichment 
Clay Wagatha, Marketing/Life Enrichment 
Breanna Broering, LMSW, Birch Pavilion Social Work 
Melanie Farmer, RN, ADON – Birch Pavilion 
Lisa Telling, Administrative Assistant - Forefront Dining Services 
 
Guest: American Sign Language Interpreter (ASL) 
 
Old Business: 
There was not any old business from the previous meeting that needed to be brought 
up for discussion or to follow-up on. 
 

Outings for January 2024: 

La Seniorita – TBD 

Wal-Mart – TBD  

Possible Handz on Art – TBD  

 
Special Events for January 2024: 
 
TBD 

Resident Group Interview Questions: 
Susan discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights that are 
reviewed during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, 
and today we will be reviewing Grievances. 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 46

dgratton
Text Box
3



Grievances:  

• Have any of you ever voiced a complaint/grievance to the facility? How did staff react 
to this? Did they resolve the problem? 
All residents present said yes. 

 

• Do you feel free to make complaints to staff? If not, why not? 
All residents present said yes. 
 

• Is there anything else about life here in the facility that you would like to discuss? 
One resident said it was difficult to find a social worker to have a discussion with when 
needed. Another resident said they have no problem meeting with social workers. 
Breanna, LMSW, Birch Pavilion Social Work stated that she understands sometimes it       
can be difficult since right now there are only two social workers in the building. 
Another resident suggested they put a sign up sheet on their door so if they aren’t 
there when the resident wants to meet they can leave their name, date and time they 
stopped by so the social workers can follow up with them. Breanna agreed that was a 
good suggestion and that we will do that going forward. 

 
1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
Residents present at the meeting provided the following suggestions and comments: 

• One resident asked if they can get soup other than potato and mushroom 
soup 

o Another resident said they enjoy the potato soup 
o Lisa said they are open for suggestions of other types of soup. 

• Another resident asked about sloppy joes 
o Lisa stated that sloppy joes will be on the new menu, but will be going 

through a 4-week cycle . 

• Another resident asked for pizza 
o Lisa said they don’t have the proper equipment to accommodate 

pizzas. 
o Susan said they can do a pizza party as part of activities in either 

January or February. 

• More eggs and less pancakes. 
o It was stated you can always order eggs on your order form. 

• The rice needs more butter/seasoning, it only comes with one butter. 
o It was stated that you can ask for more butter on your order form. 

• The burgers are made sloppy and once the cheese is stuck to the bun it rips 
when I try to fix it. 

o Lisa will follow up with the kitchen. 

• I asked for home fries but got tater tots. 
o Lisa to follow up with kitchen to see if they have that. 

 
 

Page 8 of 46



• The crab salad was very good, but the CNA’s circle everything on my order 
and I don’t want that much food. 

o Melanie has talked to CNA’s about this but will remind staff again that 
this is not the proper way to take meal orders. 

• Can we get steak? 
o Lisa let the residents know they would be having prime rib for 

Christmas dinner. 

• Two residents stated they think the kitchen does a really good job. 
 

2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

• The staff do a great job. 

• My bed wasn’t made until 10:30 the other night 
o Melanie will follow up with CNA’s 

• Laundry needs to be picked up better but they are doing a good job on 
towels 

o Melanie will follow up with CNA’s 
 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:  

• Fine. 

• Up and down. 

• There is a draft from my window. 
o Clay to follow up with ES 

• I need plastic put on mine. 
o Two residents agreed 
o Clay to follow up with ES 

4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

• One resident said they were left in the restroom after using it for a long 
time 

o Melanie apologized and will follow up with the resident’s Assistant 
Director of Nursing 

 

5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

• One resident said most of the time. 

• No other concerns at this time. 
 

Page 9 of 46



 
6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:              

• One resident said I get my showers. 

• Another resident said they do a good job. 
 

7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on your Pavilion. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

• Multiple residents said good. 

• One resident said the caregivers can be a little loud when trying to do their 
job in the rooms while residents are sleeping. 

o Melanie will remind staff to try their best to avoid this 
 

The floor was opened for additional comments: 

• I have a question on the restorative therapy? I would like it 2-3 times a 
week, but the CNA’s don’t always have time 

o Susan to follow up 

• Another resident said it has went down for him and would like to do it 
again 

o Breanna said we will touch base with therapy and follow up 
 

 
 

 
 

The next Pavilions Resident Council meeting will be held on Thursday January 16, 2024 
at 11:00am in the Multi-Purpose Room. Susan asked for a volunteer to read over and 
sign the December 2024 minutes, and X said that she would do this. The Pavilions 
Resident Council Meeting was adjourned at 11:30 am by Susan, seconded by X.     
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
_______________________  _______________________ 
Clayton Wagatha    Susan Eldred, CTRS            
Marketing/Life Enrichment   Recreational Therapist 
 
 
 
______________________ 
X, Cherry Resident 

 

Page 10 of 46



Elm Resident Council Minutes 
Meeting Held- December 17th, 2024 

 
The March meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Elm Resident Council was called to order at 
1:30pm in the Elm Common Area. 
 
Members Present were: Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
16 Residents attended. 
 
Staff Present: 
Susan Eldred, Recreation Therapist 
Naomi Rode, Assistant Director of Nursing 
 
Old Business:  
None 
 
New Business: 
Asked the residents if they need help do the staff help them.  
X and X stated “yes.” X stated “yeah.” X stated “oh yeah.” 
 
Asked the residents if they were being offered a snack before bed.  
X stated “yes,” X stated “I don’t think about it,” and X stated “I don’t think about it.” X stated “never 
once.” 
 
Asked the residents if the staff were respectful to the residents.  
X, X and X stated “yes.” X stated “depends on what you’re doing.” 
 
Asked the residents if the food is good here.  
X, X and X stated “yes.” X stated “I don’t know.” X stated “no,” 
 
Asked the residents if the rooms were getting cleaned.  
X stated “yeah.” X stated “I don’t know.” And X stated “yes.” X stated “too clean.” 
 
Asked the residents if their clothes are getting cleaned. 
X, X, X and X stated “yes.” 
 
Asked the residents if the Temperature in the rooms are good.  
X, X and X sated “yes.” X stated “too good.” 
 
Asked the residents if they have enough to do. 
X and X stated “oh yes.” X stated “I know there are activities but I don’t know what they are.” 
Recreation Therapist reminded X about the board where all the activities are posted. X stated “yes, 
plenty.” 
 
Questions, Suggestions, Concerns and Comments: 
The floor was open for questions, suggestions, concerns and comments.  
 
X stated “keep the kitchen cleaner.” 

Page 11 of 46



 
Suggestions for upcoming activities: 
Pancakes 
Brownies 
Cookie decorating 
Ice cream with the kids 
Reading with the kids 
 
 
Meeting was closed at 2:01pm 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Susan Eldred, CTRS  Naomi Rode, BSN, RN    
 

Page 12 of 46



GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

Service Excellence Award Program 

December 2024 

  

Date: 12/02/2024 
Employee: Renee Dowswell 

Awarded for: 

Going ABOVE and BEYOND with decorating our amazing bulletin boards and pool 
Christmas tree. Your talent and creativity are only matched by your enthusiasm for 
teaching classes! Thank you for bringing so much joy to us al, especially during the 
holiday season! The clients of the Wellness center, as well as your fellow staff 
members, LOVE to see what you come up with and you never fail to deliver!!! Thank 
you Renee!!! 

Position: Water Fitness Instructor 

Nominated by: Carrie Baldwin 

 
 
 

 

Date: 12/3/2024 
Employee: Jake Patt 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for battling the heavy snow and cold to keep the Cottage sidewalks and 
entryways clear. We appreciate you! 

Position: Custodian 

Nominated by: Melissa Gomez 

 
 
 

Date: 12/4/2024 
Employee: Naomi Rode 

Awarded for: 
Naomi jumped in to help on a very busy day with labs and an IV start. Her knowledge 

and expertise is highly valued on Dogwood. Thanks so much for all you do! 

Position: ADON 

Nominated by: Erica Harpe 

 
 
 

Date: 12/15/2024 
Employee: Gunner Schwartz 

Awarded for: 
His attitude is one of the best! He is such a hard worker and is very much appreciated 

by the staff and residents! 

Position: Dietary Staff (Forefront) 

Nominated by: Kelsey Prielipp 

 
 
 

Date: 12/19/2024 
Employee: Kat Biddle 

Awarded for: 

Kat is one of our nurses who I can go to for anything. She is always kind, on top of 

everything, knows her patients, and truly looks out for their best interests. I am always 

excited when Kat is working the floor! 

Position:  RN 

Nominated by: Jessica Newberry 

Page 13 of 46

dgratton
Text Box
4



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: 12/19/2024 
Employee: Rhonda Gillespie 

Awarded for: 
"I don't know what I would do without her. She lightens the mood and makes you so 

happy. She is really great." 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Resident 

Date: 12/29/2024 
Employee: Kelsey Prielipp 

Awarded for: 

Kelsey knew that a float CNA was struggling on her assignment and she jumped in to 

help by making the beds on her pod, straightening up rooms, collecting meal trays and 

emptying her buckets to help her catch up. It made a big difference in her co-workers 

day by helping out! 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Michelle Godin 

Date: 12/30/2024 
Employee: Craig Shantz 

Awarded for: 
Being a rockstar every shift. You are very appreciated and your hard work does not go 

unnoticed. Thank you!!! 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Mikki Popp 

Page 14 of 46



Department 4th Qtr 2024 3rd Qtr 2024 2nd Qtr 2024 1st Qtr 2024

Administration -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000% 8.57$ 0.000% 25.63$ 0.001%

Adult Day Services -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000%  $             - 0.000%

Child Day Care 98.30$ 0.002% 275.85$ 0.006% 108.81$ 0.003% 1,371.65$ 0.030%

CNA 55,747.47$ 1.187% 68,069.11$ 1.527% 30,768.27$ 0.908% 68,401.19$ 1.565%

CNA Training 227.94$ 0.005% 129.71$ 0.003% -$ 0.000%  $             - 0.000%

Marketing/Foundation -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000%  $             - 0.000%

Cottages 18,999.56$ 0.405% 17,775.33$ 0.399% 11,198.26$ 0.330% 22,113.20$ 0.479%

Diversional Therapy 1,556.01$ 0.033% 1,696.27$ 0.038% 3,075.09$ 0.091% 2,844.32$ 0.062%

Financial Mgt. 558.29$ 0.012% 634.42$ 0.014% 902.27$ 0.027% 483.14$ 0.010%

Housekeeping 2,446.53$ 0.052% 3,466.06$ 0.078% 1,783.13$ 0.053% 2,340.47$ 0.051%

Human Resources 8.91$ 0.000% 34.28$ 0.001% 10.74$ 0.000% 112.20$ 0.002%

Human Services 704.80$ 0.015% 362.72$ 0.008% 148.77$ 0.004% 21.18$ 0.000%

Laundry 2,023.39$ 0.043% 1,390.57$ 0.031% 1,544.37$ 0.046% 2,268.41$ 0.049%

LPN 10,423.17$ 0.222% 12,716.17$ 0.285% 15,808.78$ 0.466% 15,029.75$ 0.325%

Maintenance 9,061.88$ 0.193% 8,706.38$ 0.195% 7,059.54$ 0.208% 7,699.75$ 0.167%

Nursing Administration 4,805.39$ 0.102% 8,400.77$ 0.189% 9,678.58$ 0.285% 11,573.41$ 0.251%

RN 30,726.34$ 0.654% 28,004.08$ 0.628% 25,386.34$ 0.749% 25,022.29$ 0.542%

Therapies - PT, OT 2,364.88$ 0.050% 4,137.96$ 0.093% 5,446.10$ 0.161% 5,768.52$ 0.125%

Totals $139,752.86 $155,799.68 $112,927.62 $165,075.11

% of payroll 2.976% 4695340 3.496% 4456596.1 3.331% 3.658%

Grand Traverse Pavilions

Quarterly Overtime Rolling Calendar Lookback

Pay Dates In:

Page 15 of 46

dgratton
Text Box
5



 
 

TO:  Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
FROM: Dave Hautamaki, Interim Administrator/CEO       
RE:  December Report 
 
Census (Average Daily Census) 
 Jan-MTD Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 

Medical Care 
Facility (MCF) 

179 178 163 173 168 167 164 

Cottages 59 58 58 61 63 63 60 

 
MCF Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 

Admissions & Re-admits 64 45 55 52 63 63 

Discharges 52 46 55 48 61 59 

MMC Referrals 221 169 210 169 215 208 

MMC Denied 48 32 35 26 41 38 

Transfers to LTC 2 1 5 3 2 3 

 
Cottages Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 

Admissions 2 0 1 3 3 3 

Respite 4 4 7 6 6 5 

Discharges  2 2 2 0 0 2 

 
Finance 

 Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 Sept-24 August-24 July-24 

Combined Net Income $(778,017) $16,634 $47,415 $106,264 *$1,101,297 $44,212 

MCF   
Net Income 

$(721,830) $55,083 $54,974 $124,307 $1,122,407 $67,724 

Cottage  
Net Income 

$(56,187) $(38,448) $(7,560) $(18,043) $(21,110) $(22,511) 

Cash Balance $7,677,738 **$8,789,614 $3,853,444 $3,615,910 $3,506,346 $3,438,728 

A/R Days Sales 
Outstanding 

57 56 58 60 60 54 

*Notified of cost settlement from 10/1/22 – 9/30/23 of $1,024,304. 
**Certified Public Expenditure of $903,648 and year-end cost settlements for the year 2022 of $676,286 & 2023 of $3,282,428. 

  

MCF Operating Expenses PPD History   

 Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Actual PPD 

$507 $492 $468 $469 $452 $457 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Budgeted PPD 

$453 $457 $453 $457 $453 $453 

Variance 
(unfavorable)/favorable 

$(54) $(35) $(15) $(12) $1 $(4)  

       

Facility Reported Incidents 
 Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 

Medical Care Facility 7 3 7 4 5 6 

Page 16 of 46

dgratton
Text Box
6



2 
 

Wellness Center 
Numbers of Patients seen: Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 

Medicare A 32 21 27 38 48 43 

Medicare Advantage Skilled 40 33 36 30 35 39 

Private Insurance: Inpatient 4 1 3 2 5 5 

Private Pay: Inpatient 0 0 2 0 2 3 

Auto: Inpatient 0 0 0 1 0 0 

Med A/Rehab Inpatient 
Totals 

76 55 68 71 90 90 

       

Medicaid 3 5 5 2 2 0 

Medicare B: Inpatient 34 37 42 40 38 39 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Inpatient 

16 21 19 14 10 7 

Med B Inpatient Totals 53 63 66 56 50 46 

       

Medicare B: Outpatient 22 29 26 20 21 21 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Outpatient 

42 47 48 51 52 60 

Private Insurance: 
Outpatient 

16 20 21 18 17 18 

Work Compensation: 
Outpatient 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Private Pay: Outpatient 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Auto: Outpatient 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Outpatient Totals 80 96 95 89 90 99 

       

Numbers of Wellness 
Center Visits: 

      

Aquatic inpatients therapy 
visits 

14 18 16 20 18 2 

Aquatic aftercare visits per 
month 

200 287 312 342 341 325 

Aquatic outpatient PT visits 82 175 184 148 170 206 

Aquatic group class 
participants 

52 95 89 54 86 85 

Land therapy visits (PT, OT, 
SLP) 

212 203 266 208 253 170 

Total Outpatient therapy 
visit 

315 378 450 356 423 462 

       

Outpatient aquatic therapy 
revenue 

34,317.98 47,778.42 49,639.40 42,934.12 47,997.47 53,398.88 

Aftercare monthly revenue 2,000 2,870 3,120 3420 3410 3250 

Aquatic group class 
revenue 

1,040 1900 1,780 1080 1720 1700 

Cottages visits 91 26 41 34 59 61 

Total Wellness center 
revenue 

37,357.98 46,548.42 54,539.40 47,434.12 53,127.47 60,348.88 

 
Staffing 

 Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 

Hires 8 9 15 35 2 7 

Resignations  6 3 3 5 4 8 

Referrals 9 5 3 9 7 9 

Total # Employees 334 338 332 325 307 311 

Jan 2025 MDT # 341 employees 
Talent Sourcing and Recruiting is underway for census to grow to 185 (CNAs, UWs, RNs, Social Worker) 

 

Page 17 of 46



3 
 

Activities 
Recreational Therapists in the life enrichment department continue to complete video chats 
throughout the month for 6 residents over FaceTime or Google Duo. 
 
Activities, Special Events and Outings that occurred in December included small group activities such 
as Bird Care; Card Group including Euchre and Uno, Word Games (Name that Tune and 
Scategories), and Creative Kitchen group baking items for mocktail hour such as fruit kabob Grinch 
hats, Christmas cookies, hot cocoa ornaments and snickerdoodle muffins.  
 
Residents engaged in arts and crafts with Christmas card making, creative coloring, snowflake 
painting, and wreath making. In addition to helping fold the weekly Pavilions Post, residents continue 
to attend book club meetings starting their fourth book, The President Is Missing by James Patterson 
and Bill Clinton. this month. Residents continue to check out books from the book mobile that visits 
monthly with rotating reading material to check out. Residents participated in morning stretch/exercise 
groups throughout the week. Song circle group continues to take place throughout the building 
including Maple rehab pavilion as a morning and afternoon activity in hallways and common areas. 
 
Large group activities that were held included: Drum Circles, Bingo, Bingo Store, Popcorn Fridays & 
Movies and Tuesday Mocktails. Special events that took place during December were holiday dinners 
with friends and family, Christmas celebration with friends and family, Tyler’s Mobile Exotic Zoo visit, 
youth ballet performance by Dance Arts Academy/Company Dance Traverse, and a New Year’s Eve 
celebration. The Grand Traverse Show Chorus, TBA and Central High Schools Peer-to-Peer 
Program, John Denner Christmas Performance, Cherry Capital Men’s Chorus, Bob and Tally, The 
Local’s Band, and many other caroling groups came to perform music/caroling for residents in the 
multipurpose room. Livestreaming of church services from Central United Methodist Church, 
Gaither’s Gospel and St. Francis of Assisi continues Sunday’s. Catholic church services were 
attended with Catholic Mass with Father Joe once this month, and Rosary & Holy Communion 
weekly.  Outings that residents signed up for include Christmas Light Drives, Festival of Trains, and a 
Meijer shopping trip. Elm residents have participated in various sensory group activities including-
sensory cart, coloring, crafts. They engage in song circle twice a week with life enrichment staff. They 
participate in small group morning exercise. Cognitive groups include trivia, Jeopardy, history, 
categories, large dice games, book clubs and jokes. Residents participated in a creative kitchen 
making Christmas cookies and brownies. Residents engage in weekly intergenerational visits from 
the children of the Pavilions Day care center where they made Christmas decorations and various 
sing a long activity as well as weekly movie and popcorn activity.  
 
On December 18th, Let’s Talk Food Meeting was held and on December 19th the Pavilions Resident 
Council meeting for residents was held for all pavilions to come together to meet. Elm Resident 
Council was held separately on December 17th.  
   
Environmental Services 
 
New decals were installed on our new bus including our new Wellness center decal. 

The pool area and Beech gym offices were painted.  

The Therapy pool re-surfacing project was completed. 

All pool deck tiles were professionally cleaned and all annual maintenance to pool equipment was 

completed prior to re-opening pool. 

 

Page 18 of 46



1 

 

GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

MEMORANDUM 

 
Financial Operations Report 

December 2024 

 

Grand Traverse Pavilions Combined 

 

Note:  The December financial statements are preliminary and will be adjusted for 

various items in preparation for the external audit of the County’s financial 

statements that include GTP as an Enterprise Fund.  That audit generally occurs 

in May and June. Adjustments to fixed assets, Pension Liabilities, Other Post 

Employment Benefits (“OPEB”) and various reserves are among the items that 

require additional time to compute. 

 

REVENUE:      

The overall revenue for the Pavilions in December was $2,392,329 resulting in 
an unfavorable budget variance of $36,988.  This included a three-month 
retroactive increase in provider taxes (negative revenue) of $215,690 and an 
impairment loss related to PACE North of $484,307.  Without these two items 
there would have been a favorable revenue variance of $700,000. 
         

EXPENSES:        
The total overall operating expenses for the Pavilions in December were 
$3,170,346 resulting in an unfavorable variance to budget of $795,077. Much of 
the variance is due to higher occupancy than budgeted.  The most significant 
single item was retention pay of $320,000. 

     
NET INCOME/LOSS: 

There was net loss of $778,017 from the combined programs of the Pavilions in 
December resulting in an unfavorable budget variance of $832,065. Excluding 
the loss related to PACE, the retroactive impact of provider tax increases and the 
retention pay there would have been net income of $143,416 which would have 
exceeded the budgeted amount by 89,368.  In other words, the underlying 
operations, in the aggregate, performed very well in December. 

 
OPERATING CASH:     

Total cash at month-end was $7,677,738. There was a net decrease (more spent 
than was brought in) in overall cash of $1,111,876 for the month.  
 
There were no significant irregular payments received in December.  
 

Page 19 of 46

dgratton
Text Box
7



2 

 

The schedule of irregular payment (outflows) from GTP includes an adjustment 
to the expected timing of a few items from December to January.  Added to the 
list in December 2024 was the $1,200,000 payment to MERS for the Defined 
Benefit Pension Plan that the board approved in November.  Also included was 
the Retention Pay issued in December. The schedule now includes a projection 
for calendar 2025. 
  

VOUCHERS:        
Purchase orders, invoices, checks written, and supporting documentation were 
reviewed for voucher numbers 5604-5613 for the month of December and were 
in order without exception.  

 
Grand Traverse Medical Care 

REVENUE:    
The census for December averaged 176 residents which was thirty-one above 
the budgeted census and thirteen more than the prior month.  Private pay census 
was one below budget, Medicare was eight above budget, Medicaid was thirty-
one above budget and Hospice was seven below the budgeted census.  The 
occupancy for December was 73% of licensed beds and 85% of available beds.  
Calendar year to date occupancy was 69% of licensed beds and 85% of 
available beds. 
 
The average rate per patient day (“PPD”) for resident revenue was $30.73 over 
budget (favorable).  This is attributable to Medicare occupancy being over budget 
by 32 percent. 
 
Other revenue was, other than the retroactive provider tax increases and 
impairment loss, in line with other months.  Longevity Health has 36 enrolled 
participants in January.   The Pavilions achieved a quarterly bonus of $6,100 by 
having a very low hospital admission rate for the Longevity Health participants. 
 

 
EXPENSES:   
  Operating Expenses were $54.20 per patient day more than budgeted for the 

month resulting in an unfavorable flexed variance of $295,932 based on the 
5,460 days of care.  This compares to the $35.26 per patient day, $172,175 
unfavorable flexed variance in November. 

 
 The unbudgeted annual retention pay for the nursing facility in December was 

$287,090 and the December legal fee expenses were $54,615.  Together those 
expenses exceeded the unfavorable flexed variances.   

 
 
NET INCOME/LOSS: 

Grand Traverse Medical Care produced net loss of $721,830 for the month, 
which was $719,750 worse than budgeted.  

Page 20 of 46



3 

 

 
 
RECEIVABLES: 

Days Revenue Outstanding (“DRO”) is 57 days as of 12/31/2024.  This is one 
more than as of 11/30/2024.  Our goal is to reduce that number to 45 days.   
 
There were eight Medicaid applications that were approved by DHHS during 
December.  Those amounts have been billed and should be paid in January. 
 
In addition, there was one filed Medicaid application waiting for a determination 
as of the end of the December with total balance due of $43,700.  That 
application was approved after month end and the balance has been billed to 
Medicaid. 
 
There are five private pay residents who have not paid their current bill but have 
indicated they are in the process of completing a Medicaid application that they 
believe will cover their outstanding balance. 

 
 The audit of the 2022 cost report began in January.  The filed cost report set 

payments for 24 months.  Audit adjustments result in payment reconciliations in 
the future. 

 
 

The Cottages 
 
REVENUE:  

Total revenue of $306,044 generated a $28,869 unfavorable variance to the 
budget.    
 
The average leased occupancy for the Cottages-Assisted Living was 52 
apartments (plus 1 spouse) during the month (8 below budget, .5 less than the 
prior month), representing 66% occupancy.  In addition, there were 119 days 
(average of 4.0 per night) of overnight respite provided during the month (44 
more than the prior month).   Hawthorn Lofts-Independent Living average census 
was 1 resident per day for 33% occupancy which was one less than the prior 
month. Total average census of 57 residents (one less than the prior month). 
 
Occupancy above included an average of 13.0 Pace North residents in the 
Cottages, a decrease from prior month of .5. 

 
EXPENSES:  

Expenses for December (before depreciation) were $338,909 which was above 
the budgeted amount by $83,447 for an unfavorable variance. $33,349 of that 
amount was from the retention pay. 
 
 

Page 21 of 46



4 

 

NET INCOME/LOSS: 
The program had a net loss for the month of $56,187 resulting in an unfavorable 
variance of $112,315.  Without the retention pay the net loss for December would 
have been lower than November’s loss by $15,610. 
 
 
 

Unassigned Fund Balance 
 

Approved 2024 Operating Budget       $ 28.7M   
Unassigned Fund Balance Target Percentage                20% 
Unassigned Fund Balance Target Amount                 $5.7M 
Current Unassigned Fund Balance*          $7.7M 
Current Fund Balance as a percentage of Operating Budget         27%  
Amount Available Above/ (Below) Target        $2.0M 
 
*Fund balance is different from a cash balance as it includes other assets and is net of 
current liabilities.  Those items do not generally change significantly so we are reporting 
here on the cash balance amount. 

Page 22 of 46



Grand Traverse Pavilions

Irregular payments

Trailing Twelve Months plus upcoming year

Vendor Description Month Amount Notes Other

2024

Grand Traverse County union pension bond principal January 215,000.00         Amortization changes each year Pmts done in 2039, prin. Gradually inc.

Grand Traverse County union pension bond interest January 96,806.25           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Payroll Retention pay January 214,192.15         Non-recurring payment Expensed in 2023; Paid in 2024

State of Michigan Provider Taxes January 229,867.05         Deferred billing of 4th Qtr 2023 provider taxes Amount varies annually; offset by the deferral of the 4th quarter of 2024 provider taxes until January 2025

Forefront Every 4 years, leap year payment February 14,000.00           Extra cost for extra day of service Required under the contract

Grand Traverse County non-union pension bond interest payment February 54,940.00           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly, Paid twice each year

Nationwide Insurance Liability and property insurance February 67,277.75           Installment payment Calendar year policy

Payroll Perfect Attendance February 3,740.18             Quarterly with an annual bonus for those with perfect attendance

State of Michigan Quality Assurance Supplement Reconciliation February 253,637.05         Annual reconciliation-pmt 1 of 2 Next year proj at $510,000 refund

Nationwide Insurance Liability and property insurance March 62,272.41           Installment payment Calendar year policy

Payroll 3 payrolls in the month (26 per year) March 700,000.00         

State of Michigan Outstation worker payments per contract March 18,537.00           1/2 Paid back to GTP by Pace Contract renews 10/1--want decision by 6/2

State of Michigan Quality Assurance Supplement Reconciliation March 99,322.65           Annual reconciliation-pmt 2 of 2 Next year proj at $700,000 refund

Alliance for Senior Housing Rental Commissions April 4,283.00             Cottage lease commission

Grand Traverse County Hawthorn cottage bond principal payment April 230,000.00         Level principle payments Pmts done in 2031-level principle pmts

Grand Traverse County Hawthorn cottage bond interest payment April 24,437.50           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Grand Traverse County Rent--Pace Bond interest April 43,496.25           Interest decreases each year Paid by Pace to GTP

Payroll Perfect Attendance April 5,051.25             Quarterly payment-$100 grossed up for FICA for those with perfect attendance

Windemuller Electric Transformer replacement April 133,980.00         One time capital expenditure

Backflow Man Backflow valve testing/repairs May 1,650.00             Required annual testing

Floor Covering Brokers Kitchen tile regrout May 14,973.36           One time capital expenditure

MCMCFC Annual Dues May 12,100.00           This is the 2024-25 amount

Plante Moran Cost Report Preparation June 11,000.00           Medicare & Medicaid Cost Reports-annual Benchmarking survey and MA rate projec.

Nationwide Insurance Liability and property insurance June 62,272.41           Installment payment Calendar year policy

State of Michigan Outstation worker payments per contract June 37,076.00           1/2 due to be paid back to GTP from Pace Contract renews 10/1--want decision by 6/3

Grand Traverse County union pension bond interest payment July 93,581.25           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Otis Elevator Elevator contracts July 10,077.12           Annual expense for elevator maintenance

Brightly Software, Inc. Maintenance management software July 10,380.39           Annual renewal for software license

Payroll Perfect Attendance August 5,000.00             Quarterly payment-$100 grossed up for FICA for those with perfect attendance

Total Fire Protection Fire Sprinkler Head Replacements August 14,123.00           One time capital expenditure First payment-balance in September

Gerard Bodalski Moving Expense Reimbursement August 8,000.00             Per employment agreement Through payroll

Grand Traverse County non-union pension bond principal August 275,000.00         Amortization changes each year Pmts done in 2039, prin. Gradually increase

Grand Traverse County non-union pension bond interest August 54,940.00           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Warner Norcross Two months legal fees August 24,852.00           Pace litigation

Payroll 3 payrolls in the month (26 per year) August 740,000.00         

Total Fire Protection Balance of Fire Sprinkler Head Replacements September 17,499.74           Balance of capital expenditure Came in $2,052 below bid

Leading Age Annual Dues September 29,105.14           Annual Dues Updated for actual 24-25 invoice (higher by $325.00)

Nationwide Insurance Liability and property insurance September 62,272.41           Installment payment Calendar year policy

Otis Elevator Elevator contracts October 10,000.00           Annual expense for elevator maintenance

MERS Supplemental Pension Payment October 30,707.08           Amount varies annually

Grand Traverse County Hawthorn cottage bond interest payment October 21,907.50           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Grand Traverse County Rent--Pace Bond principal paid to County October 155,000.00         Pmts done in 2037, prin inc by $5k most years To be paid by Pace to GTP, subject to sublease payment deferral agreement

Grand Traverse County Rent-- Pace Bond interest paid to County October 43,496.25           Interest decreases each year To be paid by Pace to GTP, subject to sublease payment deferral agreement

Payroll Perfect Attendance October 5,726.75             Quarterly payment-$100 grossed up for FICA for those with perfect attendance

Grand Traverse County Rent--Pace Facility October 31,250.00           Level lease payment To be paid by Pace to GTP

Longevity Pay Annual pay based on seniority and hours November 82,381.20           Annual payment; expensed monthly Per union agreement and handbook, $381.20 higher than estimated

Barnes & Thornburg Union Contract legal fees November 9,213.86             3 year contract expires 12/31/2024 $10,786.14 lower than estimated

Tesco Replacement bus November 121,410.00         Offset by $98k insurance proceeds rec. in Oct

State of Michigan Outstation worker payments per contract December 18,537.00           1/2 due to be paid back to GTP from Pace

MERS Defined Benefit Pension Contribution December 1,200,000.00     Elective payment approved by board in Nov

Page 23 of 46



Grand Traverse Pavilions

Irregular payments

Trailing Twelve Months plus upcoming year

Vendor Description Month Amount Notes Other

Warner Norcross Attorney Fees December 71,354.52           Two months

Nationwide Insurance lawsuit retention (deductible) December -                       Notice of intent to sue rec 4/26/24 May be settled with no retention

Nothern Accents Painting Pool area and portions of Outpatient Therapy December 5,000.00             

Retention Pay Approved at Oct board meeting December 320,439.07         Actual--$25k less than Estimate. Pd 12/13/24 Includes employer taxes

Forefront Child care, vending and allowance overages Every 10,000.00           Varies based on usage

6,091,166.54     

2025--Projected

Grand Traverse County union pension bond principal January 220,000.00         Amortization changes each year Pmts done in 2039, prin. Gradually inc.

Grand Traverse County union pension bond interest January 93,581.25           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Midwest Pools Inc. Pool bottom January 13,625.00           Capital purchase

Northern Michigan Glass Front Doors January 15,465.00           Capital purchase

Acrisure Cyber liability annual premium January 12,287.50           Expensed monthly

Warner Norcross Attorney Fees January 52,740.22           

Brown & Brown Mgmt Liability annual premium January 31,860.00           Expensed monthly

Payroll 3 payrolls in the month (26 per year) January 720,000.00         Biweekly pay, two 3 pay period months each year

Grand Traverse County non-union pension bond interest payment February 53,675.00           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly, Paid twice each year

Nationwide Insurance Liability and property insurance February 70,000.00           Installment payment Calendar year policy

Payroll Perfect Attendance February 4,000.00             Quarterly with an annual bonus for those with perfect attendance

Warner Norcross Attorney Fees for January February 30,000.00           

Relias elearning program February 39,000.00           Annual expense Employee e learning module

NetSmart Technologies Annual Pmt for legacy healthcare record access February 24,000.00           Annual payment annual pmt for legacy healthcare record access

State of Michigan Quality Assurance Supplement Reconciliation February (259,721.82)       Annual reconciliation--refund in 2025

Nationwide Insurance Liability and property insurance March 70,000.00           Installment payment Calendar year policy

Warner Norcross Attorney Fees for February March 35,000.00           

State of Michigan Outstation worker payments per contract March 18,725.00           1/2 Paid back to GTP by Pace Contract renews 10/1--want decision by 6/2

State of Michigan Quality Assurance Assessment March 330,846.75         5 months retroactive increase Actual $134,110.35/month, budget is $67,941.00/month

State of Michigan Quality Measures Incentive Assessment March 28,636.00           5 months retroactive increase Actual $14,408.55 per month, budget is $8,681.35/month

Grand Traverse County Hawthorn cottage bond principal payment April 230,000.00         Level principle payments Pmts done in 2031-level principle pmts

Grand Traverse County Hawthorn cottage bond interest payment April 21,907.50           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Grand Traverse County Rent--Pace Bond interest April 41,171.25           Interest decreases each year Paid by Pace to GTP

Warner Norcross Attorney Fees for March April 50,000.00           

Payroll Perfect Attendance April 5,000.00             Quarterly payment-$100 grossed up for FICA for those with perfect attendance

Backflow Man Backflow valve testing/repairs May 2,000.00             Required annual testing

MCMCFC Annual Dues May 12,100.00           This is the 2024-25 amount

Plante Moran Cost Report Preparation June 12,000.00           Medicare & Medicaid Cost Reports-annual Benchmarking survey and MA rate projec.

Nationwide Insurance Liability and property insurance June 70,000.00           Installment payment Calendar year policy

State of Michigan Outstation worker payments per contract June 37,450.00           1/2 due to be paid back to GTP from Pace Contract renews 10/1--want decision by 6/3

Grand Traverse County union pension bond interest payment July 89,896.25           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Otis Elevator Elevator contracts July 11,000.00           Annual expense for elevator maintenance

Brightly Software, Inc. Maintenance management software July 11,000.00           Annual renewal for software license

State of Michigan 2019 Audit payment--after Circuit Court decision July??? 334,731.63         Dif between audited cost and allowed costs for claims between 10/1/20 and 9/30/21 (1 year)

State of Michigan 2022 Audit payment-audit underway Jan 2025 July?? ??? Dif between audited cost and allowed costs for claims between 10/1/21 to 9/30/23 (2 years)

Payroll Perfect Attendance August 5,000.00             Quarterly payment-$100 grossed up for FICA for those with perfect attendance

Grand Traverse County non-union pension bond principal August 275,000.00         Amortization changes each year Pmts done in 2039, prin. Gradually increase

Grand Traverse County non-union pension bond interest August 53,675.00           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Payroll 3 payrolls in the month (26 per year) August 720,000.00         

Leading Age Annual Dues September 30,000.00           Annual Dues Updated for actual 24-25 invoice (higher by $325.00)

Nationwide Insurance Liability and property insurance September 70,000.00           Installment payment Calendar year policy

MERS Supplemental Pension Payment October 31,000.00           Amount varies annually

Grand Traverse County Hawthorn cottage bond interest payment October 19,176.25           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Grand Traverse County Rent--Pace Bond principal paid to County October 160,000.00         Pmts done in 2037, prin inc by $5k most years To be paid by Pace to GTP, subject to sublease payment deferral agreement

Grand Traverse County Rent-- Pace Bond interest paid to County October 41,171.25           Interest decreases each year To be paid by Pace to GTP, subject to sublease payment deferral agreement

Payroll Perfect Attendance October 6,000.00             Quarterly payment-$100 grossed up for FICA for those with perfect attendance

Page 24 of 46



Grand Traverse Pavilions

Irregular payments

Trailing Twelve Months plus upcoming year

Vendor Description Month Amount Notes Other

Grand Traverse County Rent--Pace Facility October 31,250.00           Level lease payment To be paid by Pace to GTP

Longevity Pay Annual pay based on seniority and hours November 85,000.00           Annual payment; expensed monthly Per union agreement and handbook, $381.20 higher than estimated

State of Michigan Outstation worker payments per contract December 19,000.00           1/2 due to be paid back to GTP from Pace

MERS Defined Benefit Pension Contribution December -                       Elective payment approved by board (if any) $1.2M in 2024

Retention Pay Part of union contract and past practice for others December 325,000.00         Includes employer taxes

Forefront Child care, vending and allowance overages Every 12,000.00           Varies based on usage

Page 25 of 46



Page 26 of 46



Page 27 of 46



Page 28 of 46



Page 29 of 46



Page 30 of 46



Page 31 of 46



Page 32 of 46



Page 33 of 46



Page 34 of 46



Page 35 of 46



Page 36 of 46



Page 37 of 46



Page 38 of 46



Rev. 01/24/2025 

 

Grand Traverse County 
Dept. of Health & Human Services 

Board

Chief Executive Officer

Medical Care Facility Administrator

Dining and 
Nutritional 
Contract

Director of 
Nursing

Asst. Director of 
Nursing

Registered Nurse

CNA, Nurse Aide

Universal Worker

Life Enrichment 
Coordinator

Recreational 
Therapist

Activities CNA

Human Services 
Coordinator

Social Worker, 
Licensed

Social Services 
Designee

Staff 
Development 
Coordinator

Staff 
Development RN

MDS Coordinator

MDS RN

Environmental 
Services Director

Asst. 
Environmental 

Services Director

Launderer

Housekeeper

Custodian

Maintenance 
Technician

Environmental 
Services Office 

Manager

Central Supply 
Coordinator

Central Supply 
Technician

Finance Director

Business Office 
Manager

Accounts 
Manager

Senior Billing 
Specialist

Billing Specialist

Human 
Resources 

Director

Payroll

Employee 
Benefits

Human 
Resources 
Generalist

Human 
Resources 
Technician

Scheduling 
Coordinator

Scheduler

Residential 
Services Director

Residential 
Services Nurse

Residential 
Services 

Coordinator

Universal Worker

Life Enrichment 
Coordinator

Wellness Center 
Director

Outpatient 
Manager

Physical 
Therapist

Occupational 
Therapist

Acquatic 
Instructor

Office Manager

Physical 
Therapist

Physical Therapy 
Assistant

Occupational 
Therapist

Certified 
Occupational 

Therapy Assistant

Speech Language 
Pathologist

Information 
Systems Director

Information 
Systems 

Technician

Administrative 
Services Director

Administrative 
Assistant

Child Care 
Facilitator

Child Care 
Facilitator 
Assistant

Child Care 
Assistant

PACE NORTH
Board of Directors*

Grand Traverse Pavilions 
Foundation Board*

Legend 

 Appoints Board Members 

    * CEO Board Membership 

 Contractual  

GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

Page 39 of 46

dgratton
Text Box
8



GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
Telephone Number: 932-3000 

 
Resolution 2025-1 

 
Grand Traverse Pavilions 

Grand Traverse Pavilions/Grand Traverse Medical Care 
 

Authorized Representative 
 
WHEREAS, The Grand Traverse County Department of Human Services Board 

as the governing body of the Grand Traverse Pavilions/Grand 
Traverse Medical care, has under PA 280, administrative 
responsibility for all County programming directed toward meeting 
the basic human services needs of primarily the economic 
disadvantaged residents of the County as well as programming as 
provided by the Grand Traverse Pavilions/Grand Traverse Medical 
Care, and, 
 

WHEREAS, that for the purposes of Grand Traverse Pavilions/Grand Traverse 
Medical Care, David Hautamaki, the Administrator has been 
authorized as assistant secretary for the Grand Traverse County 
Department of Human Services Board, and 
 

WHEREAS, the above named is to be held responsible operationally for the 
accountability and will maintain the necessary records as required by 
State and/or Federal authorities, and  
 

WHEREAS, any other actions such as licensing, and any other documents, 
necessary or appropriate to effect transactions for the organization 
are hereby approved, and the Administrator is hereby authorized 
and directed to execute on behalf of the Department of Human 
Services Board and the organization, and 
 

THEREFORE  
BE IT RESOLVED, 

the Grand Traverse County Department of Human Services Board 
for the Grand Traverse Pavilions/Grand Traverse Medical Care, 
hereby designates David Hautamaki, who is the person with the 
power and full authority to sign paperwork on behalf of the Board in 
the interim of Board meetings, as so long as it is necessary for 
timeliness and continuance of daily operations and the board is 
informed at their next regularly scheduled meeting of such. 
 

 
APPROVED       ____             
DISAPPROVED ____              
 
at the January 30, 2025 meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human 
Services Board. 
  
 

___________________________________    _______________ 
 Mary Marois, Chair       Date 
 Grand Traverse County Department of Health 

and Human Services Board 

Page 40 of 46

dgratton
Text Box
9



Page 41 of 46

dgratton
Text Box
10



Page 42 of 46



Page 43 of 46



Page 44 of 46



Page 45 of 46



Page 46 of 46


